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To our Shareholders:

As a community bank, we value our contributions to the communities and customers that we serve. Our
commitment is to build long-term relationships through periods both prosperous and difficult. In light of a

weakening economy, we continue our focus on operating a well-capitalized bank to benefit those that we
serve.

Although the Bank's performance and earningswere not equal to our peers, we

have achieved major success in changing the direction of your company during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003.

Beginning with the sale of our Monticello Branch in July 2002 and the selection of a new management
team in May 2003, your Board of Directors has given a new vision to your company. This vision includes

a desire to bring excellent core banking services to the markets that we serve and reviewing all avenues
to enhance shareholder value.

Executive Management and the Board of Directors have identified key areas of concern and have begun
to concentrate on making necessary changes. Those areas include, but are not limited to, expense
reduction for an immediate improvement in profits, improving asset quality to reduce future loan losses,
and the restructure of the balance sheet in an attempt to improve the net interest margin.

From our home office in Camden to our banks in Fordyce, Sheridan, and Bryant, our staff understands
the needs of our customers and has the ability to meet those needs. You can be assured that we will
continue to strive to maximize shareholder value and maintain our market positions.

As HEARTLAND continues its evolution, we continue to-assess everything that we do or not do by a
major test of measurement: Is it in the best interest of our shareholders, customers, and staff? If it is in
the best interest of all three, it is in the best interest of each one and each will benefit from it.

The Board of Directoré and Executive Managemeént thank you for your continued support and give
a special thanks to the Bank staff, a group of hard working dedicated bankers that know their customers
and know how to achieve results. We look forward to serving you during the next year.

Sihcerely,

St 7ot

Charles T. Black »
President and Chief Executive Officer
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

HCB Bancshares, Inc. (“Bancshares™) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Oklahoma in
December 1996 at the direction of the Board of Directors of HEARTLAND Community Bank (the “Bank™) for the
purpose of serving as a savings institution holding company of the Bank, upon the conversion of the Bank from
mutual to stock form, which was completed on April 30, 1997 (the “Conversion”). The accompanying consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of Bancshares and the Bank and are collectively referred to as the
“Company”. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Prior to the Conversion, Bancshares did not engage in any material operations. Bancshares has no
significant assets other than the outstanding capital stock of the Bank, a portion of the net proceeds of the
Conversion and notes receivable, one of which is from the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”).
Bancshares’ principal business is the business of the Bank. At June 30, 2003, the Company had total assets of
$251.0 million, deposits of $152.0 million, and stockholders’ equity of $28.5 million, or 11.3% of total assets.

As of June 30, 2003, the Bank operated through five full service-banking offices located in Camden (2),
Fordyce, Bryant, and Sheridan, Arkansas. During July 2002 the Bank sold its Monticello branch.

As a federally chartered savings institution, the Bank is subject to extensive regulation by the OTS. The
Bank’s lending activities and other investments must comply with various federal regulatory requirements, and the
OTS periodically examines the Bank for compliance. The Bank’s deposits are insured up to the maximum limits by
the Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”) administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”). The FDIC also has the authority to conduct special examinations. The Bank must file reports with OTS

describing its activities and financial condition and is also subject to certain reserve requirements promulgated by
the Federal Reserve Board.
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MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS !

Bancshares common stock began trading on the Nasdaq National Market on May 7, 1997, under the
symbol "HCBB." Effective February 2, 1999, the Bancshares common stock was delisted and ceased trading on the
Nasdaq National Market. Bancshares common stock began trading on the OTC Bulletin Board effective September
16, 1999 and was listed on the Nasdaq Small-Cap Market effective November 22, 1999. At June 30, 2003, there
were 1,461,199 shares of the common stock outstanding. For the purpose of this disclosure, shares held in the
Stock Option Trust are considered to be outstanding, however, for financial reporting purposes, such shares are
reported as treasury shares. At June 30, 2003, there were 520 stockholders of record according to the Company’s
transfer agent listing. Following are the high and low bid prices, by fiscal quarter, as reported on the Nasdaq Small-
Cap Market July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2003, as well as the dividends paid during such quarter$.

High Low Dividends Per Share

Fiscal 2003 ‘

First Quarter $15.59 §$ 14.00 ,$.0.08

Second Quarter 16.51 15.05 ' 0.09

Third Quarter 17.25 15.93 . 0.09

Fourth Quarter 18.35 16.50 . 0.09
Fiscal 2002

First Quarter - $13.00 $11.90 i$ 0.06

Second Quarter 12.95 12.00 I 0.07

Third Quarter 15.00 12.61 0,07

Fourth Quarter 16.70 14.27 . 0.08

|
The stated high and low bid prices reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown or
commission, and may not represent actual transactions.

The payment of dividends on common stock is subject to determination and declaration by the Board of
Directors of Bancshares. The payment of future dividends will be subject to the requirements of applicable law and
the determination by the Board of Directors of Bancshares that the net income, capital and financial condition of
Bancshares and the Bank, thrift industry trends and general economic conditions justify the payment of dividends,
and there can be no assurance that dividends will continue to be paid in the future.

Since Bancshares has no significant source of income other than dividends from the Bank, the payment of
dividends by Bancshares can be depéndent upon receipt of dividends from the Bank. Payment of cash dividends by
the Bank is limited by certain federal regulations under which the Bank may not declare or pay a cash dividend on
or repurchase any of its common stock if the effect thereof would cause its regulatory capltal to be reduced below
(1) the amount required for the liquidation account established in connection with the Bank's conversion to stock
form or (2) the regulatory capital requirements imposed by the OTS. In certain circumstances earnings appropriated
to bad debt reserves and deducted for federal income tax purposes may not be availablé to pay cash dividends
without the payment of federal income taxes by the Bank on the amount of such earnings rcmoved from the reserves
for such purposes at the then current income tax rate.

Federal regulations impose certain additional limitations on the payment of diviﬂends and other capital
distributions (including stock repurchases and cash mergers) by the Bank. Under OTS regulations, savings
institutions must submit notice to the OTS prior to making a capital distribution if (a) they would not be well
capitalized after the distribution, (b) the distribution would result in the retirement of ‘any of the institution’s
common or preferred stock or debt counted as its regulatory capital, or (c) the institution is a subsidiary of a holding
company. A savings institution must make application to the OTS to pay a capital distribution if (x) the institution
would not be adequately capitalized following the distribution, (y) the institution’s total distributions for the
calendar year exceeds the institution’s net income for the calendar year to date plus its net income (less
distributions) for the preceding two years, or (z) the distribution would otherwise VIOIate applicable law or
regulation or an agreement with or condition imposed by the OTS.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

Total @SSELS ..vvvervivereerrenseeer e e
Loans receivable, net...........cccoeeeviieniiiienns
Allowance for loan losses ..
Cash and due from banks.........coc..oovvccvcnrernnnnn
Interest-earning savings deposits
Investment securities
DEPOSILS ..ot
FHLB advances .......cccovveveccvorivesarenre e senns
Note payable..............
Stockholders’ equity
Number of:

Real estate loans outstanding.........oceeecevvvenes

Deposit accounts

Offices open......coovvvvicrcnannnn,

[nterest income
Interest eXpense ..o
Net Interest INCOME ..ovveniiivenreenrirasrrireeseeranenee
Provision for loan and investment losses..........
Net interest income after provision

for loan and investment [0SSES.........coocriveeunenes
Noninterest income....................
Noninterest expense.............
Income before income taxes ............ccoceeevvnne.
Income tax provision (benefit)...........cccoernnnn.

NEINCOME eevviiivivrivecrieie e e

BaSIC ..ot

At June 30,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

$251,024,783  $276,425,294 $287,598,650  $291;192,175 $285,396,885
100,779,545 124,176,898 131,651,421 135,626,505 115,162,883
1,605,677 1,628,515 1,446,114 1,231,709 1,329,201
3,003,656 3,492,257 3,302,540 3,211,802 3,560,884
4,203,320 14,404,572 15,107,481 236,846 1,693,330
129,960,346 118,198,564 120,082,177 132,543,065 147,119,689
151,956,504 165,005,183 161,285,179 144,873,071 146,296,598
69,068,534 82,263,936 91,915,694 115,609,029 104,523,419
S - 80,000 160,000 240,000
28,454,987 26,736,288 31,934,334 28,240,550 32,117,560
1,195 1,517 1,730 1,820 1,709

15,694 18,090 18,538 17,980 18,526

S 6 6 6 6

Year Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

$ 14416,171 § 17916,113 § 20,078,400 § 19,808,899 § 18,274,647
8.229.096 10.823.701 14,079.466 13,099,656 12,093,603
6,187,075 7,092,412 5,998,934 6,709,243 6,181,044
533,000 359,000 296,000 -- --
5,654,075 6,733,412 5,702,934 6,709,243 6,181,044
2,386,685 1,606,460 1,378,612 1,039,622 1,018,654
6,890,845 7,113,145 6,929,118 7,304,110 6,847,715
1,149,915 1,226,727 152,428 444755 351,983
88.750 61,027 (467,888) (341,147) (63,6358)

$ 1,061,165 § _1,165700 $ 620,316 § __785902 § __415641

$ 0.78 $ 071 §$ 0.33 $ 0.40 3 0.18

0.73 0.68 0.33 . 0.40 0.18

0.35 0.28 0.24 0.24 0.24
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Year Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Performance Ratios: 1
Return on assets (net income divided ‘
by average total assets) ... 0.41% 0.41% 0.21% 0.27% 0.15%
Return on average equity (net income ‘
divided by average equity) .....cccccrmniicncneiiinnennn. 375 3.82 2.02 ?.76 1.14
Interest rate spread (combined weighted
average interest rate earned less combined i
weighted average interest rate Cost)..........cocvenirnenis 2.14 2.25 1.72 2 12 1.81
Net interest margin (net interest income .
divided by average interest-earning assets) ................ 2.54 2.66 2.19 2.49 2.34
Ratio of average interest-eaming assets 1
to average interest-bearing liabilities ... 111.83 110.06 108.91 107.68 111.55
Ratio of noninterest expense to average j
LAl ASSELS....vvevvreiiice e e 2.69 252 238 2.55 2.48
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total assets |
at end of Period.............oocvvvverrennirns e 1.50 0.92 0.48 033 0.21
Nonperforming loans to total loans ‘
atend of Period.......oovevvvvinicenierr e 3.18 1.44 0.81 0.64 0.46
Allowance for loan losses to total ‘
loans at end of period..........ccocveiveernciicccne, 1.46 1.22 0.99 0.85 1.08
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming ‘
loans at end of period..........cccooveevvereiniiceici e 45.84 8491 121.48 133.95 234.84
Provision for loan losses to total loans
atend of period ... 0.48 0.25 0.20 Lo --
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding............... 0.51 0.1t 0.06 0.08 0.13
\
Capital Ratios: 1
Equity to total assets at end of period........ccoceevirrinnnens 11.34 9.67 11.10 9.70 11.25
Average equity to average assets 11.07 10.81 10.55 9.95 13.19
Dividend payout ratio’ .........c.c..coocervcrncerinerensenrione, 44.66 40.52 76.46 64.50 142.58

i

Dividend payout ratio is the total dividends declared divided by net income.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables represent summarized data for each of the four quarters in the years ended June 30,
2003 and June 30, 2002.

2003
(in thousands, except share data)
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $3,383 $3,348 $3,713 $3,972
[nterest expense 1,892 1,945 2,131 2,261
Net interest income 1,491 1,403 1,582 1,711
Provision for loan and investment losses 120 120 203 90
Net interest income after provision
for loan and investment losses 1,371 1,283 1,379 1,621
Noninterest income 469 386 404 1,128
Noninterest expense 1,592 1.882 1.664 1,753
Income (loss) before income taxes 248 213) 119 996
Income tax provision (benefit) 81 (196) (67) 271
Net income (loss) $_167 $_3dn $_186 $__725
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 011 $ (0.01) $ 014 $ 054
Diluted eamings (loss) per common share 0.10 (0.01) 0.13 0.51
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.08
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 1,387,613 1,366,342 1,356,781 1,343,943
Diluted 1,459,054 1,456,922 1,445,945 1,427,939
2002
(in thousands, except share data)
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $4,248 $ 4,458 $ 4,509 $4,701
Interest expense 2,430 2,559 2,796 3.039
Net interest income 1,818 1,899 1,713 1,662
Provision for loan and investment losses 140 60 99 60
Net interest income after provision
for loan and investment losses 1,678 1,839 1,614 1,602
Noninterest income 401 402 429 375
Noninterest expense 1,949 1,650 1,799 1.715
Income before income taxes 130 591 244 262
Income tax provision (benefit) (16) 110 9 (24)
Net income $__146 $_48] $__253 $__286
Basic eamings per common share $ 012 $ 0.28 $ 015 $ 016
Diluted eamings per common share 0.12 0.27 0.14 0.15
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.08 0.07 0.07 0.06
‘Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 1,391,685 1,689,348 1,691,522 1,768,494
Diluted 1,489,017 1,774,003 1,762,565 1,843,429
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ;
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS !

Forward-Looking Statements

When used in this Annual Report, the words or phrases "will likely result," "are expected to," "will
continue,” "i project” or similar expressions are intended to identify "forward-looking

non

is anticipated,” "estimate,
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. fSuch statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties including changes in economic conditions in the Company's market area,
changes in policies by regulatory agencies, fluctuations in interest rates, demand for loans in the Company's market
area, and competition that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those presently
anticipated or projected. The Company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. The Company wishes to advise readers that the factors
listed above could affect the Company's financial performance and could cause the Compaﬁy's actual results for
future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods in any
current statements. !

The Company does not undertake, and specifically disclaims any obligation, to publicly release the result
of any revisions which may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or ci‘rcumstances after the
date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events. i

Significant Accounting Policies

The Company's significant accounting policies are set forth in note 1 of the consolidated financial
statements as of June 30, 2003 which was filed on Form 10-K. Of these significant accounting policies, the
Company considers its policy regarding the allowance for loan losses to be its most critical accounting policy,
because it requires management's most subjective and complex judgments. In addition, changes in economic
conditions can have a significant impact on the allowance for loan losses and therefore the provision for loan losses
and results of operations. The Company has developed appropriate policies and procedures for assessing the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, recognizing that this process requires a number of assumptions and
estimates with respect to its loan portfolio. The Company's assessments may be impacted' in future periods by
changes in economic conditions, the impact of regulatory examinations, and the discoveryi of information with
respect to borrowers which is not known to management at the time of the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements.

General

The Bank's principal business consists of attracting savings deposits from the genera} public and investing
those funds in loans secured by first mortgages on existing owner-occupied single-family residences in the Bank's
primary market area, commercial and multi-family real estate loans, and consumer and commercial business loans.
The Bank also maintains a substantial investment portfolio of mortgage-related securities, and nontaxable municipal
securities. i

|

The Bank's net income is dependent primarily on its net interest income, which is the difference between
interest income earned on its loans, mortgage-backed securities and municipal securities portfolio and interest paid
on customers’ deposits and other borrowings. The Bank's net income is also affected by the level of noninterest
income, such as service charges on customers' deposit accounts, net gains or losses on the sale of loans and
securities and other fees. In addition, net income is affected by the level of noninterest expense, which primarily
consists of employee compensation expenses, occupancy expenses, and other expenses. |

The financial condition and results of operations of the Bank and the thrift and banking industries as a
whole are significantly affected by prevailing economic conditions, competition, and thel monetary and fiscal
policies of governmental agencies. Lending activities are influenced by demand for and supply of credit,
competition among lenders and the level of interest rates in the Bank's market area. The Bank's deposit flows and
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costs of funds are influenced by prevailing market rates of interest, primarily on competing investments, as well as
account maturities and the levels of personal income and savings in the Bank's market area.

Asset/Liability Management

Net interest income, the primary component of the Bank's net income, is determined by the difference or
"spread” between the yield eamed on the Bank's interest-earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing
liabilities -and the relative amounts of such assets and liabilities. Key components of a successful asset/liability
strategy are the monitoring.and managing of interest rate sensitivity on both the interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. It has been the Bank's historical policy to mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in the historical
savings institution business of originating long-term single-family mortgage loans funded by short-term savings
deposits by maintaining substantial liquidity and capital levels to withstand unfavorable movements in market
interest rates, by purchasing investment securities with adjustable-rates and/or short terms to maturity and by
originating relatively shorter term consumer loans. The matching of the Bank's assets and liabilities may be
analyzed by examining the extent to which its assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive and by monitoring both
its interest rate sensitivity "gap" and the expected effects of interest rate changes on its net portfolio value.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the Bank’s strategy was to continue to use cash flows from
investment securities and loan prepayments to reduce Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, fund new loans, and

reinvest excess cash in shorter expected life mortgage-backed securities with little extension risk if interest rates
rise.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap. An asset or hability is interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it
will mature or reprice within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between
the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount of
interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negative
when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to adversely affect net interest income while a positive gap
would tend to positively affect net interest income. Similarly, during a period of falling interest rates, a negative
gap would tend to positively affect net interest income while a positive gap would tend to adversely affect net
interest income.

At June 30, 2003, the Bank’s total estimated interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within one
year exceeded its total estimated interest-eamning assets maturing or repricing in the same period, and the Bank’s
cumulative one-year gap ratio totaled a negative 18.0%. In addition, the Bank’s total estimated interest-earning
assets maturing or repricing within five years were slightly less than its total estimated interest-bearing liabilities
maturing or repricing in the same period, and the Bank’s cumulative five-year gap ratio totaled a negative 0.2%.
The Bank’s gap measures indicate that net interest income would be exposed to increases in interest rates in the
short term, but would be much less exposed to increases in interest rates over the longer term.

Market Risk

Market risk reflects the risk of economic loss resulting from adverse changes in market prices and interest
rates. The risk of loss can be reflected in diminished current market values and/or reduced potential net interest
income in future periods. The Company’s market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in lending and
deposit-taking activities. The Company does not maintain a trading account for any class of financial instrument
nor does it engage in hedging activities or purchase high risk derivative instruments. Furthermore, the Company is
not subject to foreign currency exchange rate risk or commodity price risk.

The OTS currently requires savings institutions to measure and evaluate interest rate risk on a quarterly
basis. A savings institution’s interest rate risk is measured in terms of the sensitivity of its net portfolio value
(NPV) to changes in interest rates. Net portfolio value is defined, generally, as the present value of expected cash
inflows from existing assets and off-balance sheet contracts less the present value of expected cash outflows from
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existing liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts. The Bank presently monitors and evaluafes the potential impact
of interest rate changes upon the market value of the Bank’s NPV on a quarterly basis! These computations
estimate the effect on the Bank's NPV of sudden and sustained 100 Basis Points (BP) to 300 BP increases and a 100
BP decrease in market interest rates. The Bank's Board of Directors has adopted an interest rate risk policy which in
the event of an assumed immediate and sustained 100 BP, 200 BP, or 300 BP, increase lor decrease in market
interest rates, the board has set as minimum post shock NPV ratio of 4.66%, 4.33%, and 4.00% respectively.

The following tables present the Bank’s projected change in NPV as of June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002,
as calculated by OTS, based on information provided to the OTS by the Bank. Based on such information, from
June 30, 2002 to June 30, 2003, the Bank’s interest rate risk has become slightly less llablllty sensitive over the
period.

June 30, 2003

Change in
Interest Rates NPV 3
in BP Net Portfolio Value Ratio (1) BP Change in NPV Ratio
(Rate Shock) Amount $ Change % Change
+300 $ 16,425 $ (8,104) (33) % 6.90 % ! (260)
+200 20,039 (4,489) (18) 8.16 ' (133)
+100 23,210 (1,318) ) 9.19 ‘ 3N
+0 24,528 9.50 !
-100 23,596 (932) 4 . 9.01 C(49)
June 30, 2002 |
Change in }
Interest Rates NPV |
in BP Net Portfolio Value ' Ratio (1) BP Change in NPV Ratio
(Rate Shock) Amount 8 Change % Change
+300 $16,344 $ (9,884) (38) % 6.33 % | (298)
+200 19,671 (6,556) 25) 7.40 1 a9
+100 22,968 (3,260) (12) 8.39 C(92)
+0 26,228 9.31 ‘

i
-100 28,115 1,888 7 9.73 : 43
|

NPV Ratio is defined as the NPV divided by the portfolio value of assets.

At June 30,.2003, it was estimated that the Bank's NPV could decrease 5%, 18%, and 33% in the event of
100 BP, 200 BP, and 300 BP respective increases in market interest rates, and could decrease 4%, if market interest
rates decreased by 100 BP. These calculations indicate that the Bank's NPV could be adversely affected by
significant increases in interest rates and has decreased moderately compared to June 30, 2002.

Changes in interest rates also may affect the Bank's net interest income. Ina declihing rate environment,
more borrowers would be expected to refinance fixed rate loans at lower rates. This would have the effect of
cutting the Bank’s yield on fixed rate assets at a time when its liability costs would decline more slowly. In a rising
rate environment fewer borrowers would be expected to refinance while more depositors 'would be expected to
liquidate their certificates of deposit and reinvest them in higher rate certificates of deposit. Depositors would tend
to exhibit this behavior once rates had increased sufficiently to offset early withdrawal penalties. This would have
the effect of maintaining the asset yield at a time when liability costs would tend to rise.

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing the Bank's asset and liability policies. On at
least a quarterly basis, the Board reviews interest rate risk, as well as liquidity and capital ratios and requirements.
The Bank's management is responsible for administering the policies and determinations of the Board of Directors
with respect to the Bank's asset and liability goals and strategies. At June 30, 2003, the Bank’ 's estimated changes in
net interest income and NPV were within the targets established by the Board of Directors. |

10
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Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes, such as the above computations,
are based on numerous assumptions, including relative levels of market interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit
decay, and should not be relied upon as indicative of actual results. Further, the computations do not contemplate
any actions the Bank may undertake in response to changes in interest rates.

At June 30, 2003, the Company had $69.1 million of FHLB advances, which represented 31.0 percent of
total liabilities at that date. All of the Company’s FHLB advances carry prepayment penalties. These advances
generally are longer term and carry rates of interest that are higher than the interest rates on the Company’s deposits.
While the Company initially utilized FHLB advances to fund loans and purchase investment securities, thereby
leveraging its equity and producing a positive interest rate spread, a significant portion of those assets have since
repriced or paid off as interest rates have decreased. The Company anticipated replacing maturing investment
securities with loan growth, and maturing FHLB advances with deposit growth. Excluding the Monticello branch
sale, the Company has experienced some deposit growth, but the anticipated loan growth has not occurred. As of
June 30, 2003, the Company’s FHLB advances were costing an average rate of 5.96 percent and had an average
maturity of approximately 6 years.

As a result, the higher interest rates on FHLB advances paid by the Company contribute to a lower interest
rate spread than the Company might otherwise have if it were able to fund all its assets with deposits or lower rate
borrowings. Moreover, interest rates on FHLB advances are fixed for longer periods of time than are the interest
rates on deposits. As a result, in the event of a decrease in interest rates, the Company will be unable to reprice its
FHLB advances without incurring a substantial prepayment penalty, which would result in a significant charge to
income or a further reduction in the Company’s interest rate spread. Conversely, in the event of increases in interest
rates, the FHLB advances will not reprice and the prepayment penalty decreases eventually to zero.

11
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table analyzes dollar amounts of changes in interest income and expense for major
components of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The table distinguishes between (i) changes
attributable to volume (changes in volume multiplied by the prior period's rate), and (i) changes attributable to rate
(changes in rate multiplied by the current period's volume).

3 Year Ended June 30,
2003 VS, 2002 2002 VS. 2001
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

(In thousands)
Interest income:
Loans receivable $ (1,859) 3 (708) $ (2,567) $ (399) § (488) $§ (887)
Investment and mortgage-
backed securities

Taxable 272 (953) (681) (495) (487) (982)
Nontaxable . (44) 32) (76) (133) (53) (186)
FHLB stock -- (22) (22) (84) (124) (208)
FHLB DDA (89) (63) (152) 410 (307) 103
Other interest-earning
assets 1 (3) 2) 3 (%) (2)
Total interest-earning
assets (1719 (1.781) (3,500) 698 (1.464) (2,162)
Interest expense:
NOW, MMDA,
statement savings (15) (198) (213) 157 (908) (751
Time deposits (525) (1,199 (1,719) 332 . (1,575) (1,243)
FHLB advances (688) 26 (662) (1,157) 98) (1,25%)
Note payable (1) -- 6] 6) -- (6)
Total interest-bearing
liabilities (1,229)  (1.366) (2,595 674 (2,581) (3.255)
Change in net interest
income $ _(490) $_(413) $ _(905) §..24) s.L117 % _109

Comparison of Financial Condition at June 30, 2003 and 2002

The Company had consolidated total assets of $251.0 million and $276.4 million at June 30, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. During the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2003 the Company experienced a decrease in its net
consolidated loan portfolio from $124.2 million at June 30, 2002, to $100.8 million at June 30, 2003. A majority of
the decrease in loans was due to increased competition in a low rate environment during the period. Specifically,
mortgage loans on one-to-four family residences and commercial real estate decreased due to a very competitive
interest rate environment. During this same period, investments and mortgage-backed securities and other short-
term interest-earning assets increased slightly from $132.6 million at June 30, 2002 to $134.2 million at June 30,
2003.

On July 19, 2002, the Bank sold its Monticello branch to Simmons First Bank of South Arkansas. The sale included
approximately $8.3 million in loans, $1.5 million in fixed assets, $0.2 million in other assets, and $13.2 million in

deposits. The Bank recognized a premium on the deposits of approximately $0.9 million and the difference was
paid in cash to the buyer.
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Deposits decreased from $165.0 million at June 30, 2002, to $152.0 million at} June 30, 2003. The
outstanding balances of FHLB borrowings were $82.3 million and $69.1 million at June 30, 2002 and June 30,
2003, respectively. The decrease in FHLB borrowings was primarily due to high loan prepayments combined with
investment securities prepayments and the Bank’s desire to retire these borrowings as they mature.

|

Stockholders' equity amounted to $28.5 million at June 30, 2003, and $26.7 million at June 30, 2002. The
increases in equity were primarily due to an increase in the unrealized gain on investment securmes available for
sale and the Company's net income eamed for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. During the year ended June 30,
2003, the Company purchased 42,237 shares of its common stock at a cost of approximately $700,000, or $16.59
per share. In addition 75,163 stock option shares were exercised at an average price of $9.14; At June 30, 2003, the
Bank's regulatory capital exceeded all applicable regulatory capital requirements and meets the definition of “well”
capitalized under the Prompt Corrective Action provisions.

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

Net Income. Net income for the year ended June 30, 2003, was approximately $1 ,061 ,000 compared to net
income of $1,166,000 for the year ended June 30, 2002. The changes resulted primarily from an increase in
noninterest income of $780,000, a decrease in noninterest expense of $222,000, offset by a decrease in net interest
income of $905,000, an increase in the provision for loan and investment loss of $174,0QO, and an increase in
income tax of $28,000. |

Interest Income. Interest income for the year ended June 30, 2003, was $14.4 million, or $3.5 million less
than interest income for the year ended June 30, 2002. The total average interest-earning assets decreased $23.1
million, while the yield decreased from 6.71% to 5.91%, primarily due to rate and volume decreases on loans and
rate decreases on investment securities.

The average balance of loans receivable decreased $22.8 million, total loan interest income decreased $2.6
million, and the average yield on loans decreased 65 basis points. As noted above, these decreases are the result of
sustained lower interest rates combined with increased competition in both the one-to-four family residential
lending area and the commercial real estate lending area. The average balance of investments and mortgage-backed
securities receivable increased $3.7 million, but interest income decreased $757,000, and the average yield
decreased 79 basis points. The average balance of other interest-earning assets (primarily FHLB DDA’s and FHLB
stock) decreased $4.1 million, interest income decreased $176,000, and the average yield decreased 59 basis points.

Interest Expense. Total average interest-bearing liabilities decreased $24.5 million,1 while the interest rate
on such liabilities decreased from 4.46% to 3.77%. The average balance of interest-bearing deposits decreased
$12.8 million, deposit interest expense decreased $1.9 million, and the average cost decreased 102 basis points. The
average balance of FHLB advances decreased $11.6 million, FHLB interest expense decreased $662,000, and the
average cost increased 3 basis points.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for the year ended June 30, 2003, was $6,2 million, or $905,000
less than net interest income for the year ended June 30, 2002. As noted above, the decrease in net interest income
from June 30, 2002 to 2003 was the result of decreases in both net volumes and net rates. During the year ended
June 30, 2003, the Federal Reserve dropped both their target fed funds rate and discount rateltwice totaling 75 basis
points, and the prime interest rate decreased 75 basis points from 4.75% on June 30, 2002/ to 4.00% on June 30,
2003. Since both long and short-term interest rates have been very low over the past two years, most of the Bank’s
deposit liabilities have repriced. Over time, if both long and short term interest rates remain low, the Bank’s interest
earning assets will continue to reprice at lower rates, thus lowering the Bank’s net interest income. :

|

Provision for Loan and Investment Losses. During the year ended June 30, 2003, the Bank’s management
continued its review of the appropriateness of the amount of the allowance for loan and investment losses. Based
on these reviews, management made a $533,000 provision for loan losses for the year ended June 30, 2003. The
allowance for loan losses of $1.6 million at June 30, 2003, represented 1.46% of gross outstanding loans which

compares to 1.22% as of June 30, 2002. The provision was made in consideration of reviews of individual loans
|
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and the fact that nonperforming loans as of June 30, 2003 as a percent of total loans increased to 3.18% from 1.44%
as of June 30, 2002. In addition, total classified assets as a percent of the Bank’s tangible capital plus allowance for
loan loss was 39.8% as of June 30, 2003, which compares to 31.0% as of June 30, 2002. As of June 30, 2003, the
Bank had $9.8 million in assets classified substandard or doubtful as compared to $7.1 million as of June 30, 2002.

Management evaluates the carrying value of the loan portfolio periodically and provisions are made, if
necessary. While management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future provisions to the
allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.
In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize changes to the allowance based
upon their judgments and the information available to them at the time of their examination.

There were no significant changes in loan terms during the year, nor were there significant changes in the
estimation methodologies employed or assumptions utilized. Nonperforming loan and loss trends did not indicate a
need to substantially modify loss experience factors during the year.

Noninterest [ncome. Noninterest income is typically comprised primarily of gains on the sales of loans and
service charges on deposit accounts. Noninterest income for the year ended June 30, 2003, was approximately
$2,387,000 compared to $1,606,000 for the year ended June 30, 2002. This increase of $781,000 is the result of the
$743,000 gain on sale of the Monticello branch, an increase in the net gain on sales of loans, offset by lower service
charges on deposit accounts due to the sale of the Monticello branch. It should be noted, that the increase in the net
gain on sales of loans was primarily due to sustained low mortgage interest rates, and if these rates were to rise
substantially, this income would be expected to drop substantially.

Noninterest Expense. The major components of noninterest expense are salaries and employee benefits
paid to or on behalf of the Company’s employees and directors, professional fees paid to consultants, attorneys, and
accountants, occupancy expense for ownership and maintenance of the Company’s buildings, furniture, and
equipment, and data processing expenses. Total noninterest expense for the year ended June 30, 2003, was $6.9
million compared to $7.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2002. Significant components of the decrease in
noninterest expense were a $149,000 decrease in salaries and employee benefits, a $198,000 decrease in net
occupancy expense, a $32,000 decrease in professional fees, a $75,000 decrease in amortization of goodwill, offset
by a $23,000 increase in data processing expense, and a $213,000 increase in other expenses.

The sale of the Monticello branch certainly contributed to the decrease in salaries and employee benefits,
net occupancy expense, and the amortization of goodwill. However, during the quarter ended March 31, 2003, the
Company stepped up its efforts to reduce noninterest expensés. All outside consultant contracts were reviewed and
those that were not considered critical to the Company were cancelled for an estimated future annualized cost
savings of $250,000. From June 30, 2002 to June 30, 2003, the Company reduced its full time equivalent employee
number from 93 to 79 primarily through attrition (this number does not include the employees of the Monticello
branch sold in July 2002) for an estimated future annualized cost savings of $300,000.

In addition, the increase in other expenses includes a $407,000 write down of land held for investment in
Camden, Arkansas which previously was to be the site of a new home office facility. These two parcels were
purchased in 1996 and 1999 and significant costs were necessary to make the land suitable to build upon. The
Board of Directors decided that in the near future it would not be in the best interests of the Company to expend the
resources necessary to build a new home office facility. Since the land will not be utilized in the near future,
appraisals were obtained in March 2003, and the land was written down to fair market value during that quarter.

While the Company does not intend to build on this land in the near future, it currently does plan to utilize this land
at some undetermined future date.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for the Company for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and
2002 were 7.7% and 5.0%, respectively. The variance in the effective rate from the expected statutory rate is due
primarily to tax exempt interest.
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The Company had a deferred tax asset totaling approximately $2.0 million as of June 30, 2003, and $1.7
million as of June 30, 2002. The recoverability of this asset is entirely contingent upon the production of taxable
income for income tax reporting purposes. Management anticipates that the Company will produce such income in
the near future based on management’s current forecasts of earnings and if necessary, management’s tax and
interest-rate risk planning strategy of selling available for sale tax exempt securities and reinvesting the proceeds

“into taxable income producing securities. The strategy does not anticipate significant taxable gains on the sale of
the tax-exempt securities, but rather a shift of nontaxable interest income to taxable interest income. See Note 10 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. ‘

Comparison of Financial Condition at June 30, 2002 and 2001

|
The Company had consolidated total assets of $276.4 million and $287.6 million at Jun‘c 30, 2002, and 2001,
respectively. During the twelve-month period ended June 30, 2002, the Company expenenced a decrease in its net
consolidated loan portfolio from $131.7 million at June 30, 2001, to $124.2 million at June 30 2002. During this
same period, investments and mortgage-backed securities and other short-term interest- eammg assets decreased
slightly from $135.2 million at June 30, 2001, to $132.6 million at June 30, 2002. ‘

Deposits increased from $161.3 million at June 30, 2001, to $165.0 million at: ‘June 30, 2002. The
outstanding balances of FHLB borrowings were $91.9 million and $82.3 million at June 30 2001 and June 30,
2002, respectlvely The decrease in FHLB borrowings was primarily due to slower loan demand combined with
increases in deposits and investment securities paydowns. ‘

Stockholders' equity amounted to $26.7 million at June 30, 2002, and $31.9 mlllxomat June 30, 2001. The
decreases in equity were primarily due to the to the purchase of treasury stock, offset by a reduction of the
unrealized loss on investment securities available for sale and the Company's net income earned for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002. During the year ended June 30, 2002, the Company purchased 510 ,389 shares (net of options
exercised) of its common stock at a cost of approximately $7.6 million, or $14.82 per share. , At June 30, 2002, the
Bank's regulatory capital exceeded all applicable regulatory capital requirements and meets the definition of “well”
capitalized under the Prompt Corrective Action provisions. ;
|

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001

Net Income. Net income for the year ended June 30, 2002, was approximately $1,166,000 compared to net
income of $620,000 for the year ended June 30, 2001. - The changes resulted primarily from an increase in net
interest income of $1,093,000, an increase in noninterest income of $228,000, offset by an increase in the provision
for loan and investment loss of $63,000, a decrease in the income tax benefit of $529,000, and a increase in
noninterest expense of $184,000.

Interest Income. Interest income for the year ended June 30, 2002, was $17.9 millic%n, or $2.2 million less
than interest income for the year ended June 30, 2001. The total average interest-earning assets decreased $7.5
million, while the yield decreased from 7.31% to 6.71%, due to rate and volume decreases on loans and investment

securities. !

The average balance of loans receivable decreased $4.7 million, total loan interest i‘\ncome decreased $0.9
million, and the average yield on loans decreased 37 basis points. The average balance of investments and
mortgage-backed securities receivable decreased $10.2 million, interest income decreased :$1.2 million, and the
average yield decreased 45 basis points. The average balance of other interest-earning assets (primarily FHLB
DDA’s and FHLB stock) increased $7.4 million, interest income decreased $108,000, and the average yield
decreased 296 basis points. ‘

Interest Expense. Total average interest-bearing liabilities decreased $9.5 million, while the interest rate on
such liabilities decreased from 5.59% to 4.46%. The average balance of interest-bearing deposits increased $9.8
million, deposit interest expense decreased $2.0 million, and the average cost decreased 1161 basis points. The
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average balance of FHLB advances decreased $19.2 million, FHLB interest expense decreased $1.3 million, and the
average cost decreased 11 basis points.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for the year ended June 30, 2002, was $7.1 million, or $1.1
million more than net interest income for the year ended June 30, 2001. The increase in net interest income from
June 30, 2001, to 2002 was the result of an increase in our interest rate spread of 53 basis points. During the year
ended June 30, 2002, the Federal Reserve dropped interest rates 5 times totaling 200 basis points, and the prime
interest rate decreased 225 basis points from 7.00% on June 30, 2001 to 4.75% on June 30, 2002. These interest
rate decreases caused a greater reduction in the average rates we paid on deposits and borrowed money than the
average yield which we eamned on loans, investments, and interest-bearing deposits. This trend reflects the liability
sensitive nature of the Company which would, keeping all other things equal, typically show improved net interest
income in a decreasing interest rate environment,

Provision for Loan and Investment Losses. During the year ended June 30, 2002, the Bank’s management
continued its review of the appropriateness of the amount of the allowance for loan and investment losses. Based
on these reviews, management made a $330,000 provision for loan losses and a $29,000 provision for investment
losses for the year ended June 30, 2002. The allowance for loan losses of $1.6 million at June 30, 2002, represented
1.22% of gross outstanding loans which compares to 0.99% as of June 30, 2001. The provision was made in
consideration of reviews of individual loans and the fact that nonperforming loans as of June 30, 2002, as a percent
of total loans increased to 1.44% from 0.81% as of June 30, 2001. In addition, total classified assets as a percent of
the Bank’s tangible capital plus allowance for loan loss was 31.0% as of June 30, 2002, which compares to 8.1% as
of June 30, 2001. Part of this increase is due to an increase in classified assets and part is due to the Bank paying
Bancshares $9.0 million in dividends, thus reducing capital at the Bank. As of June 30, 2002, the Bank had $7.1
million in assets classified substandard or doubtful as compared to $2.5 million as of June 30, 2001.

Management evaluates the carrying value of the loan portfolio periodically and provisions are made, if
necessary. While management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future provisions to the
allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.
In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize changes to the allowance based
upon their judgments and the information available to them at the time of their examination. '

There were no significant changes in loan terms during the year, nor were there significant changes in the
estimation methodologies employed or assumptions utilized. Nonperforming loan and loss trends did not indicate a
need to substantially modify loss experience factors during the year.

Noninterest Income. Noninterest income is comprised primarily of gains on the sales of loans and service
charges on deposit accounts. Noninterest income for the year ended June 30, 2002, was approximately $1,606,000
compared to approximately $1,378,000 for the year ended June 30, 2001, This increase of approximately $228,000
is the result of loan fee income, growth of the Bank’s checking and savings accounts resulting in increased service
charges, and increases in the deposit account fee structure.

Noninterest Expense. The major components of noninterest expense are salaries and employee benefits
paid to or on behalf of the Company’s employees and directors, professional fees paid to consultants, attorneys, and
accountants, occupancy expense for ownership and maintenance of the Company’s buildings, furniture, and
equipment, and data processing expenses. Total noninterest expense for the year ended June 30, 2002, was §7.1
million compared to $6.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2001. Significant components of the increase in
noninterest expense are an $86,000 increase in salaries and employee benefits, a $52,000 increase in net occupancy
expense, a $56,000 increase in data processing expense, a $146,000 increase in other expenses, offset with a
$136,000 decrease in professional fees as a result of improved internal and accounting controls.
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Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for the Company for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and
2001 were 5.0% and (307.0)%, respectively. The variance in the effective rate from the expected statutory rate is
due primarily to tax exempt interest.

The negative rate for fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, is a net tax benefit and increases net income. The
net tax benefit is primarily due to tax exempt income. The corresponding deferred tax asset totals approximately
$1.7 million as of June 30, 2002, and $1.5 million as of June 30, 2001. The recoverability of this asset is entirely
contingent upon the production of taxable income for income tax reporting purposes. Management anticipates that
the Company will produce such income in the near future based on management’s current forecasts of earnings and
management’s tax and interest-rate risk planning strategy of selling available for sale tax exempt securities and
reinvesting the proceeds into taxable income producing securities. The strategy does not anticipate significant
taxable gains on the sale of the tax-exempt securities, but rather a shift of nontaxable interest income to taxable
interest income. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. :

Sources of Capital and Liquidity

The Company has no business other than that of the Bank. Bancshares’ primary sources of liquidity are
cash, dividends paid by the Bank and earnings on investments and loans. In addition, the Bank is subject to
regulatory limitations with respect to the payment of dividends to Bancshares. :

. |

The Bank has historically maintained substantial levels of capital. The assessment of capital adequacy is
dependent on several factors including asset quality, earnings trends, liquidity and ‘economic conditions.
Maintenance of adequate capital levels is integral to provide stability to the Bank. The Bank seeks to maintain
substantial levels of regulatory capital to give it maximum flexibility in the changing regulatory environment and to
respond to changes in the market and economic conditions.

The Bank's primary sources of funds are customer deposits, proceeds from principal} and interest payments
on loans and mortgage-backed securities, interest payments and maturities of investment securities, and earnings.
While scheduled principal repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securities and interest payments on
investment securities are a relatively predictable source of funds, deposit flows and loan and mortgage-backed
prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions, compétition and other factors.
The Bank does not solicit customer deposits outside of its market area through brokers or other financial
institutions. : !

|

At June 30, 2003, the Bank had designated securities with a fair value of approximately $130.0 million as
available for sale. In addition to internal sources of funding, the Bank as a member of the!FHLB has substantial
borrowing authority with the FHLB. The Bank's use of a particular source of funds is based on need, comparative
total costs and availability.

At June 30, 2003, the Bank had outstanding approximately $5.9 million in commitmjents to originate loans
(including unfunded portions of construction loans) and $2.1 million in unused lines of credit. At the same date, the
total amount of certificates of deposit which were scheduled to mature in one year or le:ss was $76.4 million.
Management anticipates that the Bank will have adequate resources to meet its current commitments through
internal funding sources described above. Historically, the Bank has been able to retain a significant amount of its
savings deposits as they mature.

Management is not aware of any current recommendations by its regulatory authorities, legislation,
competition, trends in interest rate sensitivity, new accounting guidance or other material events and uncertainties
that would have a material effect on the Bank's ability to meet its liquidity demands.
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Independent Accountants’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
HCB Bancshares, Inc.
Camden, Arkansas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of HCB Bancshares, Inc. as of
June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2003. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of HCB Bancshares, Inc. as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

BKDJ P

Little Rock, Arkansas
July 31,2003
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Deloitte & Touche LLP

Suite 1800 !
111 Center Street !
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 |

Tel:(501) 370-3600
Fax: (501) 374-4809

. _ : o
Fo (501 3757817 Deloitte
& Touche

To the Board of Directors of
HCB Bancshares, Inc.
Camden, Arkansas
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows of HCB Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary (the “Company™) for the year ended June 30,
2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon51b111ty is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

|
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amouats and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations and cash flows of HCB Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary for the year ended June 30 2001 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

W ﬁ-TM-«vAgLLP

September 21, 2001
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits with banks

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities:
Available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost at June 30, 2003
.and 2002, of $126,360,791 and $115,796,195, respectively)
Loans receivable, net of allowance at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
of $1,605,677 and $1,628,515, respectively
Accrued interest receivable
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Premises and equipment, net
Goodwill, net
Real estate held for sale
Other assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Advance payments by borrowers for

taxes and insurance
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 12 and 14)

STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY:

Common stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,
2,645,000 shares issued, 1,457,982 and 1,425,056 shares
outstanding at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Unearned ESOP shares

Unearned MRP shares

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost, 1,187,018 and 1,219,944
shares at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively

Total stockholders’ equity
TOTAL

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002
$ 3,003,656 S 3,492,257
4,203,320 14,404,572
7,206,976 17,896,829
129,960,346 118,198,564 ‘
100,779,545 124,176,898
1,456,372 1,721,612
4,704,100 4,709,900
5,113,645 7,112,211
- 131,250
246,160 910,587
1,557.639 1,567,443
$ 251,024,783 $ 276,425,294
$ 151,956,504  $ 165,005,183
69,068,534 82,263,936
83,879 110,446
563,620 740,008
897,259 1,569,433
222,569,796 249.689.006
26,450 26,450
25,781,908 25,832,641
(634,800) (846,400)
(82,625) (116,169)
2,221,285 1,441,942
15,537,315 14,950,088
42,849,533 41,288,552 -

(14,394,546)

(14,552.264)

28,454,987 26,736,288
$ 251,024,783 $ 276,425,294



HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

. 2003 2002 L2001
INTEREST INCOME: 1
Interest and fees on loans $ 8,168,887 $ 10,735,729 ‘ $ 11,622,492
Investment securities: j
Taxable 4,737,709 5,418,567 6,401,378
Nontaxable 1,268,696 1,344,478 1,529,550
Other 240.879 417339 524,980
Total interest income 14,416,171 17,916,113 \ 20,078,400
INTEREST EXPENSE: . ‘
Deposits 3,774,026 5,706,164 7,699,484
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 4,455,070 5,116,537 : 6,372,982
Note payable - 1,000 | 7,000
Total interest expense 8.229.096 10.823.701 i 14,079,466
NET INTEREST INCOME 6,187,075 7,092,412 ‘ 5,998,934
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND INVESTMENT LOSSES 533,000 359.000 296.000
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION |
FOR LOAN AND INVESTMENT LOSSES 5,654,075 6.733.412 5,702,934
NONINTEREST INCOME: ;
Service charges on deposit accounts 886,951 984,086 . 765,532
Gain on sales of investment securities
available for sale - 1,518 --
Gain on sales of loans available for sale, net 584,768 381,733 ; 223,906
Gain on sale of branch 742,942 -~ i -
Other 172,024 - 239,120 ¢ 389,174
Total noninterest income 2.386.685 1,606,460 1,378,612
|
NONINTEREST EXPENSE: 1
Salaries and employee benefits 3,812,522 3,961,413 ‘ 3,875,094
Net occupancy expense 887,119 1,085,602 “ 1,033,684
Federal insurance premiums : 25,953 29,439 50,330
Data processing ‘ 390,896 368,176 312,551
Professional fees 457,446 489,360 . 624,622
Amortization of goodwill - 75,000 75,000
Other 1,316,909 1,104,155 957.837
Total noninterest expenses 6,890,845 7.113.145 6,929,118
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,149,915 1,226,727 152,428
INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT) 88,750 61,027 (467,888)
NET INCOME $ 1,061,165 $ _1.165.700 ‘ $ _ 620316
‘ (Continued)
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

-

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,
NET OF TAX
Unrealized holding gain on securities
arising during period
.Reclassification adjustment for
gains included in net income

Other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING
BASIC
DILUTED

EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic
Diluted

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002 2001
$ 779,343 $ 1,503,060 $ 4,342,068
- (1.518) -
779,343 1,501,542 4,342,068
§ 1,840,508 5 _2,667,242 $ 4,962,384
1,363,626 1,635,669 1,866 .3¢
1,448,146 1,719,903 1,866,387
$ 0.8 $011 $033
$073 $0.68 $033
$035 $0.2¢8 §£024
(Concluded)
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 1,061,165 $ 1,165,700
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 587,557 743,412
Amortization (accretion) of:
Deferred loan origination fees 67,245 117,153
Goodwill . -- 75,000
Premiums and discounts on loans, net (4,412) (14,412)
Premiums and discounts on investment securities, net 526,094 49,942
Net gain on sale of investment securities -- (1,518)
Provision for loan and investment loss 533,000 359,000
Gain on sale of branch (742,942) --
Deferred income taxes (88,750} (269,037)
Origination of loans held for sale (35,107,251) (26,675,718)
Proceeds from sales of loans 33,795,154 27,117,741
Stock compensation expense 194,411 169,541
Change in accrued interest receivable 214,962 295,576
Change in accrued interest payable (141,700) (232,892)
Write down of land held for investment 407,149 -
Change in other assets (321,565) 192,983
Change in other liabilities (667,300) 358,360
Net cash provided by operating activities 312.817 3,450,831

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of investment securities - available for sale (58,735,889)

(23,053,591)

Proceeds from sales of investment securities - 4,995,347
Principal payments on investment securities 47,645,199 22,407,566
Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 5,800 25,900
Purchases of premises and equipment (234,596) (290,942)
Net change due to branch sale (2,523,471) -
Loan repayments, net of originations 15,885,458 6,599,759
Proceeds from maturities of other interest-bearing deposits - -
Net decrease (increase) in real estate held for resale 350,238 (512.455)
Net cash provided by investing activities 2,392,739 10,171,584

25

2001

$ 620,316

730,212

116,232
75,000
(4,487)
68,487

296,000
(403,424)
(13,502,308)
12,732,692
244,385
(164,301)
55,485

(720,084)
(41.483)

102,722

19,629,225
1,487,700
(1,742,409)

4,336,955
99,000
(38,524)

23,771.947

(Continued)
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

2003 2002 2001
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: . 1
Net increase in deposits $ 142,730 $ 3,720,004 $ 16,412,108
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank - 6,464,838 213,740,000
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (13,195,402) (16,116,596) (237,433,335)
Net (decrease) increase in advance payments by z
borrowers for taxes and insurance (26,567) (89,024) 59,916
Repayment of note payable -- (80,000) (80,000}
Purchase of treasury stock (700,699) (8,182,354) (1,038,686)
Payment for treasury stock options exercised 858,417 619,821 --
Dividends paid (473.938) (472,296) (474.299)
Net cash used by financing activities (13,395.409) _(14.135.607) _(8.814.296)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND |
CASH EQUIVALENTS (10,689,853) (513,1392) 15,060,373
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: !
Beginning of year 17,896,829 18.410.021 3,349,648
End of year $ 7206976 $ _1 329 $ _18,410,021
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW ‘
INFORMATION: !
Cash paid for: T
Interest §_..8405484 $ _ 11,056,593 $ _14,023.981
Income taxes (received) paid’ $ 773,855 % 194.6§8) b 150,000
|
See notes to con~solidated financial statements. 1
| (Concluded)
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation - HCB Bancshares, Inc. (“Bancshares™), a bank
holding company, owns 100 percent of HEARTLAND Community Bank and its subsidiary (collectively the
“Bank”). Bancshares’ business is primarily that of owning the Bank and participating in the Bank’s activities. The
Bank provides a broad line of financial products to individuals and small to medium-sized businesses through
banking offices located in Camden, Fordyce, Sheridan, and Bryant, Arkansas

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bancshares and the Bank and
are collectively referred to as the “Company”. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to

significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of
the deferred tax asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows,
“cash and cash equivalents” includes cash on hand and amounts due from depository institutions, which includes
interest-bearing amounts available upon demand.

Investment Securities - The Company classifies investment securities into one of two categories: held to
maturity or available for sale. The Company does not engage in trading activities. Debt securities that the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and recorded at
cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts.

Investment securities that the Company intends to hold for indefinite periods of time are classified as
available for sale and are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses are excluded from earnings
and reported net of tax as a separate component of stockholders’ equity until realized. Investment securities in the
available for sale portfolio may be used as part of the Company’s asset and liability management practices and may
be sold in response to changes in interest rate risk, prepayment risk or other economic factors.

Premiums are amortized into interest income using the interest method to the earlier of maturity or call
date. Discounts are accreted into interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity. The specific
identification method of accounting is used to compute gains or losses on the sales of investment securities.

If the fair value of an investment security declines for reasons other than temporary market conditions, the
carrying value of such a security is written down to fair value by a charge to operations.

Loans Receivable - Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable
future or until maturity or pay-off are stated at unpaid principal balances adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance
for loan losses, deferred loan fees or costs, and unamortized premiums or discounts. Interest income is recognized
on the interest method. Deferred loan fees or costs and premiums and discounts on loans are amortized or accreted
to income using the level-yield method over the remaining period to contractual maturity.
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The accrual of interest on impaired loans is generally discontinued when, in management’s opinion, the
borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due or when the loan becomes ninety days past due,
whichever occurs first. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest
income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments in excess of principali due are received, until
such time that in management’s opinion, the borrower will be able to meet payments as they become due.

|

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance to provide for
incurred but not yet realized losses. The Bank reviews its loans for impairment on a quarterly basis. Impairment is
determined by assessing the probability that the borrower will not be able to fulfill the contractual terms of the
agreement. If a loan is determined to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based on the present
value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or by! use of the observable

 market price of the loan or fair value of collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.! Throughout the year
management estimates the level of probable losses to determine whether the allowance for loan losses is appropriate
considering the estimated losses existing in the portfolio. Based on these estimates, an amount is charged to the
provision for loan losses and credited to the allowance for loan losses in order to adjust the allowance to a level
determined by management to be appropriate relative to losses. The allowance for 1oan losses is increased by
charges to income (provisions) and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. w
I

Management’s periodic evaluation of the appropriateness of the allowance is basedlon the Company’s past
loan loss expertence, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s
ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral and current economic conditions.

Homogeneous loans are those that are considered to have common characteristics that provide for
evaluation on an aggregate or pool basis. The Company considers the characteristics of (1) one-to-four family
residential first mortgage loans; (2) automobile loans and; (3) consumer and home impro{/ement loans to permit
consideration of the appropriateness of the allowance for losses of each group of loans on a pool basis. The primary
methodology used to determine the appropriateness of the allowance for losses includes segrégating certain specific,
poorly performing loans based on their performance characteristics from the pools of loans as to type and then
applying a loss factor to the remaining pool balance based on several factors including classification of the loans as
to grade, past loss experience, inherent risks, economic conditions in the primary market areas and other factors
which usually are beyond the control of the Company. Those segregated specific loans are evaluated using the
present value of future cash flows, usually determined by estimating the fair value of the loan’s collateral reduced
by any cost of selling and discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate if the estimated tlme to receipt of monies is
more than three months.

Non-homogeneous loans are those loans that can be included in a particular loan type, such as commercial
loans and multi-family and commercial first mortgage loans, but which differ in other characteristics to the extent
that valuation on a pool basis is not valid. Afler segregating specific, poorly performing loans and applying the
methodology as noted in the preceding paragraph for such specific loans, the remaining loans are evaluated based
on payment experience, known difficulties in the borrowers’ business or geographic area, loss experience, inherent
risks and other factors usually beyond the control of the Company. These loans are then graded and a factor, based
on experience, is applied to estimate the probable loss.

Estimates of the probability of loan losses involve an exercise of judgment. While ijl is possible that in the
near term the Company may sustain losses which are substantial in relation to the allowance for loan losses, it is the
Judgment of management that the allowance for loan losses reflected in the consolidated statements of financial
condition is appropriate considering the estimated probable losses in the portfolio. |

Real Estate Held for Sale - Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is initially recjorded at estimated fair
value less estimated costs to sell and is subsequently carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
estimated disposal costs. Management periodically performs valuations, and an allowance for losses is established
by a charge to operations to the extent that the carrying value of a property exceeds its estimated fair value. Costs
relating to the development and improvement of the property are capitalized, whereas those irelating to holding the
property are expensed. Real estate acquired for sale is carried of the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell.

|
|

|
i
1
i
]
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Premises and Equipment - Office premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization. The Company computes depreciation of premises and equipment using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets which range from 5 to 50 years for buildings and
improvements and from 3 to 10 years for furniture and equipment.

» Goodwill and Intangible Assets - Goodwill and other long-lived assets arc tested periodically for
impairment and written down to their fair value as necessary.

Treasury Stock - Treasury stock is stated at cost and is determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Stock Options - The Company applies the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 in
accounting for its stock option plan, as allowed under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for options granted to employees. Had compensation cost
for these plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates or repricing date for awards under those
plans consistent with the methods of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s pro forma net income and pro forma earnings
per share would have been as follows:

2003
As Reported Pro forma
Net income (in thousands) $ 1,061 $ 1,048
Earnings per share:
Basic $0.78 $0.77
Diluted $£0.73 $0.72
2002
As Reported Pro forma
Net income (in thousands) $1,166 $1,146
Eamings per share:
Basic $0.71 $0.70
Diluted $0.68 $0.67
2001
As Reported Pro forma
Net income (in thousands) $ 620 $529
Earnings per share:
Basic $033 $0.28
Diluted $033 $0.28

Loan Origination Fees - Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and
the net fee or cost is recognized as an adjustment to interest income using the level-yield method over the

contractual life of the loans. When a loan is fully repaid or sold, the amount of unamortized fee or cost is recorded
in income. ’

Income Taxes - The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in
which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax Jaws or rates are
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. The Company

considers the need for a valuation allowance if, based on available evidence, deferred tax assets are not expected to
be realized.

Interest Rate Risk - The Bank’s asset base is exposed to risk including the risk resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in the timing of cash flows. The Bank monitors the effect of such risks by considering the
mismatch of the maturities of its assets and liabilities in the current interest rate environment and the sensitivity of
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assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates. The Bank’s management has considered thje effect of significant
increases and decreases in interest rates and believes such changes, if they occurred, would be manageable and
would not affect the ability of the Bank to hold its assets as planned. However, the Bank is exposed to significant
market risk in the event of significant and prolonged interest rate changes. 3

Employee Stock Ownership Plan - Compensation expense for the Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP") is determined based on the average fair value of shares committed to be released during the period and is
recognized as the shares are committed to be released. For the purposes of earnings per share, ESOP shares are
included in weighted-average common shares outstanding as the shares are committed to be released.

Management Recognition Plan - Compensation for Management Recognition Plan shares granted is based
on the fair value of the shares at the date of grant and is recognized ratably over the vesting period.

Earnings Per Share - Eamings per share (“EPS”) of common stock has been computed on the basis of the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Basic and diluted earnings per share were both
calculated with 1,866,387 weighted-average common shares outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2001.
Weighted-average common shares outstanding was the same for basic and diluted in that year. For the year ended
June 30, 2002, basic earnings per share was calculated using 1,635,669 shares and dilutive earnings per share was
calculated using 1,719,903 shares. For the year ended June 30, 2003, basic earnings per share was calculated using
1,363,626 shares and dilutive earnings per share was calculated using 1,448,146 shares. Potennal dilutive common
shares include the Stock Option Plan shares and the Management Recognition Plan shares These potential
common shares had no dilutive effect for the year ended June 30, 2001. However, for the years ended June 30,
2003 and 2002, the Management Recognition Plan was antidilutive, but the Stock Optxon Plan was dilutive by
84,520 and 84,234 shares, respectively.

Stock Purchased for Option Benefit Trust - As of June 30, 2003, the Company has a total of 3,217 shares
of its common stock in its stock option plan trust. These shares are included in treasury stock ‘on the accompanying

consolidated statement of financial condition, are available for sale, and are managed by the trustees specifically for
funding stock option benefits provided to key employees.

Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the classifications adopted for reporting in 2003. These reclassifications had no effect on .
net earnings. !

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements — The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently
issued Statement No. 150 “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” This Statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain. financial instruments
with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. This statement is effective at the beginning of the first interim
period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption SFAS No. 150 will have
a material impact on the financial condition or operating results of the Company.
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2. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities consisted of the following at June 30:

2003
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

AVAILABLE FOR SALE Cost Gains Lossgs Value
Municipal securities $ 25,115,797 §$ 1,348,125 $ - $ 26,463,922
Equity securities 39,750 68,820 -- - 108,570
Other securities 2,000,000 - 20,000 1,980,000
Mortgage-backed securities 74,393,710 1,787,407 20,872 76,160,245
Collateralized mortgage obligations 24,811,534 436,469 394 25,247,609
Total . $ 126,360,791 § 3,640,821 $ 41266 $ 129,960,346

2002 ’
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

AVAILABLE FOR SALE Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government and agencies .. % 1,500,000 $ 30,945 $ - $ 1,530,945
Municipal securities 25,520,671 323,090 154,570 25,689,191
Equity securities 39,750 © 30,490 - 70,240
Other securities _ 2,000,000 -~ 5,000 1,995,000
Mortgage-backed securities 75,820,993 1,820,096 38,053 77,603,036
Collateralized mortgage obligations 10,914,781 395371 - 11,310.152
Total : 3 115796,195 $ 2,599,992 $ 197,623 -3 118,198,564

For the year ended June 30, 2003 and 2001, the Company did not have any realized gains or losses on sales
of investments available for sale. For the year ended June 30, 2002, the Company realized $11,659 in gains and
$10,141 in losses on sales of investment securities available for sale.

At June 30, 2003, municipal securities with a carrying value of approximately $454,000 were pledged to
collateralize public deposits. As of June 30, 2002, no securities were pledged as collateral for public deposits. At
June 30, 2003 and 2002, mortgage-backed securities with a carrying value of approximately $15.4 million and
$16.7 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for Federal Home Loan Bank advances.
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The scheduled maturities of available for sale securities at June 30, 2003, by contractual maturity are
shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
I
" Due in one year or less b -- $ --
Due from one year to five years -- L=
Due from five years to ten years . -- b
Due after ten years 27,115,797 28.443.922
27,115,797 28,443,922
Equity securities ‘ 39,750 108,570
Mortgage-backed securities 74,393,710 76,160,245
Collateralized mortgage obligations 24,811,534 25,247,609
Total $ 126360791  $ 129,960,346
3. LOANS RECEIVABLE ‘
Loans receivable consisted of the following at June 30: ;
2003 | 2002
First mortgage loans: . i
One- to four- family residences $ 33,550,184 [$ 41,724,098
Multi-family and commercial 42,560,230 ! 50,626,236
Real estate construction loans 9,726,671 i 12,449,965
Less undisbursed loan funds (5.772.941) | (5,945.029)
Total first mortgage loans 80,064,144 1 98.855,270
\‘
Consumer and other loans: |
Commercial loans 13,207,629 | 14,406,499
Automobile 4,102,692 ; 6,836,399
Consumer and home improvement loans 5,029,886 ‘ 4,807,218
Loans collateralized by deposits 2,034,110 | 2,469,033
Less undisbursed loan funds (2,137.580) } (1,718.669)
Total consumer and other loans 22236737 26,800,480
Outstanding loans 102,300,881 ' 125,655,750
Allowance for loan losses (1,603,677) ‘ (1,628,515)
Net deferred loan costs and discounts 84,341 149,663
Loans receivable, net $ 100,779,545  |'$ 124,176,898

The Company originates and maintains loans receivable which are substantially concentrated in its lending
territory (primarily Southern Arkansas) but also originates commercial real estate loans in other areas of Arkansas.
The Company’s policy calls for collateral or other forms of repayment assurance to be received from the borrower
at the time of loan origination. Such collateral or other form of repayment assurance 1s subject to changes in
economic value due to various factors beyond the control of the Company.

At June 30, 2003, impaired loans totaled approximately $6.0 million and all had designated reserves for
possible loan losses. Reserves relative to impaired loans at June 30, 2003, were approx1mately $550,000.
Approximately $480,000 in interest income was recognized on average impaired loans 1of approximately $5.95
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million for the year ended June 30, 2003. At June 30, 2002, impaired loans totaled approximately $4.9 million and
all had designated reserves for possible loan losses. Reserves relative to impaired loans at June 30, 2002, were
approximately $426,000. Approximately $173,000 in interest income was recognized on average impaired loans of
approximately $2.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2002.  Interest recognized on impaired loans on a cash
basis during 2003 and 2002 was immaterial. The Company is not committed to lend additional funds to debtors
whose loans have been modified.

At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company had zero and $396,000 in accruing loans over 90 days
delinquent, respectively. Nonaccruing loans at June 30, 2003 and 2002, totaled $3.5 million and $1.5 million,
respectively.

The subsidiary Bank had extensions of credit to executive officers, directors and to companies in which the
Banks’ directors were principal owners, in the amount of approximately $67,000 as of June 30, 2003 and $1.8
million as of June 30, 2002.

Balance, June 30, 2002 $ 1,759,829
New extensions of credit -
Repayments (1,692.431)
Balance, June 30, 2003 $__ 67398

In management’s opinion, such loans were made in the ordinary course of business and were made on
substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons. Further, in management’s opinion, these extensions of credit did not involve more
than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features.

Certain loans are originated for sale. These loans are typically held for sale only a short time, and do not
represent a material amount in the aggregate prior to their sale. Normally the short time between origination and
sale does not provide for significant differences between cost and market values.

4, ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable consisted of the following at June 30:

2003 2002
Investment securities $ 828,294 $ 839,287
Loans 628.078 882,325
Total $ 1456,372 $ 1,721,612

5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2003 2002 2001
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,628,515 $ 1,446,114 $ 1,231,709
Provision ) 533,000 330,000 296,000
Charge-offs (652,968) (234,382) (101,761)
Recoveries 97,130 86,783 20,166
Balance, end of year $ 1,605,677 $ 1,628,515 § 1,446,114

6. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System. As a member of this system, it is required
to maintain an investment in capital stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) in an amount equal to the
greater of 1% of its outstanding home loans or 1/20 of its advances (borrowings) from the FHLB. No ready market
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exists for such stock and it has no quoted market value but may be redeemed at par. The carrying value of the stock
is its cost. ‘

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 required each FHLB to replace its existing capital stock with a new
class or classes of capital stock, establish new minimum investment requirements for its members, and comply with
new minimum leverage and risk-based capital requirements. The Bank is a member of the Dallas FHLB, which
currently plans to implement its new capital plan on September 2, 2003. :

The new minimum investment requirement states that each member must maintain an investment in new
Class B Stock equal to the sum of a membership investment requirement (0.20% of the member’s total assets as of
the previous December 31), and an activity-based investment requirement (4.25% of currently outstanding advances
and certain new Mortgage Partnership Finance (“MPF™) Program loans. As of June 30, 2003, the Bank is estimated
to have a capital stock requirement of $3.4 million, well below its capital stock balance of $4.7 million as of the
same date. ‘

7. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2003 2002
Land and buildings $ 5,521,876 3 7%,153,233
Furniture and equipment 3,580,334 3,667,962
Total 9,102,210 10i821,195
Accumulated depreciation (3.988.565) (3,708,984)
Premises and equipment, net $ 5,113,645 $ ZLL 12,211

The decrease in premises and equipment includes a $407,000 write down of land held for investment in
Camden, Arkansas which previously was to be the site of a new home office facility. Theése two parcels were
purchased in 1996 and 1999 and significant costs were necessary to make the land suitable to build upon. The
Board of Directors decided that in the near future it would not be in the best interests of the Company to expend the
resources necessary to build a new home office facility. Since the land will not be utilized in the near future,
appraisals were obtained in March 2003, and the land was written down to fair market value during that quarter.
This amount was included in other noninterest expense.

8. DEPOSITS

Deposits are summarized as follows at June 30: |
2003 © 2002

Demand and NOW accounts, including noninterest-bearing

deposits of $9,447,561 and $8,889,867 in 2003 and |

2002, respectively $ 42,807,702 $ 39,092,410
Money market 4,751,127 L 5,911,715
Statement savings 7,927,966 ' 8,010,973
Certificates of deposit 96.469,709 1 111,990,085

Total $ 151,956,504 | 165,005,183
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The aggregate amount of short-term jumbo certificates of deposit with a minimum denomination of
$100,000 was approximately $17.2 million and $19.3 million at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
At June 30, 2003, scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows: -

Years ending June 30:

2004 $ 76,372,882
2005 17,025,525
2006 3,071,302
Thereafter -

Total § 96,469,709

, Eligible deposits of the Bank are insured up to $100,000 by the Savings Association Insurance Fund
(“SAIF”) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).

Deposits from related parties held by the Company at June 30, 2003 and 2002, totaled $1,133,132 and
$1,296,863, respectively.

In management’s opinion, such deposits were made in the ordinary course of business and were made on
substantially the same terms (including interest rates) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions
with other persons.

9. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Bank pledges as collateral for FHLB advances its FHLB stock and has entered into blanket collateral
agreements with the FHLB whereby the Bank agrees to maintain, free of other encumbrances, qualifying single
family first mortgage loans with unpaid principal balances, when discounted to 75% of such balances, of at least
100% of total outstanding advances. Additionally the Bank has pledged mortgage-backed securities with a carrying

value of approximately $15.4 million at June 30, 2003, as additional collateral. Advances at June 30, 2003 and
2002, had maturity dates as follows:

2003 » 2002
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
, Rate Amount Rate Amount
Years ending June 30:

2003 - % $ -- 5.70 % $ 12,007,051
2004 5.65 9,875,000 5.65 9,875,000
2005 5.95 7,055,998 5.95 7,141,929
2006 592 4,826,966 5.92 4,859,326
2007 591 6,454,197 591 6,477,709
2008 5.82 13,827,000 5.84 14,043,294
Thereafter 6.17 27,029,373 6.17 27.859.627
Total 596 % $ 69,068,534 593 % $ 82,263,936

10. INCOME TAXES

Income tax provisions (benefits) are summarized as follows:

Years Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2001
Income tax provision (benefit):
Current § 382,206 $ 330,065 $ (64,464)
Deferred (293.,456) (269,038) (403.424)
Total $ __88,730 $ _61,027 $ (467,888)
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The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rates and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows: |
Years Ended June 30,

2003 2002 ‘ 2001
Taxes at statutory rate $ 390,971 340 % $ 417,087 340 % $' 51,826 340 %
Increase (decrease) ;
resulting from: 1
Tax exempt income 431,357y (3751 (457,123) (37.26) (520,047) (341.18)
Disallowed interest expense 55,383 482 66,972 5.46 ‘ 85,650 56.19
State income taxes 38,681 3.36 -- -- | -- --
Change in estimate -- - -- -- 1 (67,000)  (43.95)
Compensation ) (16,371) (1.42) (38,289) (3.12) 1(19,825) (13.01)
Other, net 51,443 4.47 72,380 5.89 | 1,508 0.99
|
Total $ _88,750 772% $ _61,027 4.97 % $(467,888) (306.96) %

During the year ended December 31, 1996, new legislation was enacted which provides for the recapture
into taxable income of certain amounts previously deducted as additions to the bad debt reserves for income tax
purposes. The Bank changed its method of determining bad debt reserves for tax purposes following the year ended
June 30, 1997. The amounts to be recaptured for income tax reporting purposes are con51dered by the Bank in the
determination of the net deferred tax liability.

The Company’s deferred tax asset account was comprised of the following at June 3b:

2003 ! 2002

Deferred tax assets: ‘
Allowance for loan losses $ 585,425 1§ 543,084
Write-down on land held for investment 178,797 | -
Deferred compensation . 370,410 | 388,868
Net operating loss carryforward 624,590 | 801,281
AMT credit carryforward 800,410 | 445,313
Other 50,523 i 140,367
Total deferred tax assets 2,610,155 I 2318913

Deferred tax liabilities: |
Premises and equipment 70,883 : 106,624
Unrealized gains on available for sale investments 1,378,270 ‘ 960,427
Loan fees -- i 1,200
FHLB dividends 500,402 ! 465,675
Total deferred tax liabilities 1,949,555 b 1,533,926
Net deferred tax asset § _ 660,600 + § __784,987

A deferred tax liability has not been recognized for the bad debt reserves of the Bank created in the tax
years which began prior to December 31, 1987 (the base year). At June 30, 2003, the amount of these reserves
totaled approximately $3,462,590 with an unrecognized deferred tax liability of $1,177,281. Such unrecognized
deferred tax liability could be recognized in the future, in whole or in part, if (i) there is a change in federal tax law,
(ii) the Bank fails to meet certain definitional tests and other conditions in the federal tax law, (iii) certain
distributions are made with respect to the stock of the Bank, or (iv) the bad debt reserves are used for any purpose
other than absorbing bad debt losses.

As of June 30, 2003 the Company has a net operating loss carryforward of $1,882,908, of which $207,222,

$1,120,698, and $554,988 expire in 2019, 2020, and 2021, respectively. The Company’s AMT credit carryforward
of $800,410 does not have an expiration date.
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The portion of the net deferred tax asset resulting from net operating loss carryforward and AMT credit
carryforward totals $1,425,000 as of June 30, 2003. The recoverability of this asset is entirely contingent upon the
production of taxable income for income tax reporting purposes. Management anticipates that the Company will
produce such income in the near future based on management’s current forecasts of earnings and if necessary,
management’s tax and interest-rate risk planning strategy of selling available for sale tax exempt securities and
reinvesting the proceeds into taxable income producing securities. The strategy does not anticipate significant
taxable gains on the sale of the tax-exempt securities, but rather a shift of nontaxable interest income to taxable
interest income. Should this strategy not result in a sufficient amount of net taxable income, the Company will

determine the need for a valuation allowance for the potion of the net deferred tax asset resulting from the
carryforwards. :

11. BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership Plan - The Company has established an employee stock ownership plan
(“ESOP”) to benefit substantially all employees. The ESOP has a note payable to Bancshares, the proceeds from
which were used to purchase shares of common stock of Bancshares.

The note receivable, presented in the statements of stockholders’ equity as unearned ESOP shares, is to be
repaid in installments of $211,600 on June 30th each year through 2006. Interest is based upon the prime rate,
which is to be adjusted and paid annually. The note may be prepaid without penalty. The ESOP is funded by
contributions made by the Bank in amounts sufficient to retire the debt. Compensation expense of $341,215,
$288,665, and $179,882 was recognized during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Benefits become 100% vested after three years of credited service. Shares are released to participants
proportionately as the loan is repaid. Dividends on allocated shares are recorded as dividends and charged to
retained earnings. Dividends on unallocated shares are used to repay the loan and are treated as compensation
expense. Forfeitures of nonvested benefits will be reallocated among remaining participating employees in the
same proportion as contributions. At both June 30, 2003 and 2002, 21,160 shares were committed to be released by
the ESOP to participant accounts. At June 30, 2003, there were 148,120 shares allocated to participant accounts and
63,480 unallocated shares. The fair value of the unallocated shares amounted to $1,088,682 (63,480 shares at
$17.15 per share) at June 30, 2003.

Participants with vested account balances leaving employment, generally, may elect to have their allocated
shares distributed. In the case of a distribution of shares, which at the time of distribution are not readily tradable on
an established securities market, the Company is required to issue a put option to the participant. The put option is
priced using the fair market value as determined as of the most recent valuation date (prior to the exercise of such
right) by an independent appraiser. Any excess of the total purchase price at which the participant may put the
shares to the Company over the fair value of the shares at the date of the issuance of the option is recognized as
-expense to the Company with the fair value of the shares recorded as treasury stock. During the years ended June
30, 2003, June 30, 2002, and June 20, 2001 no put options were issued.

Stock Option Plan - The Stock Option Plan (“SOP”), approved by the Company’s stockholders during the
year ended June 30, 1998, provides for a committee of the Company’s Board of Directors to award incentive or
non-incentive stock options, representing up to 317,400 shares of Company stock. Options granted to executive
officers and directors vest 25% immediately and 25% on each of the three subsequent anniversary dates of the grant.
Options granted to employee’s vest 20% immediately upon grant, with the balance vesting in equal amounts on the
four subsequent anniversary dates of the grant. Options granted vest immediately in the event of disability or death.
Outstanding stock options can be exercised over a ten-year period from the date of grant. Vested options of
terminated participants expire one year after the participant’s termination date.

Under the SOP, options have been granted to directors and key employees to purchase common stock of
the Company. The exercise price in each case equals the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of
grant. During the year ended June 30, 2003, 25,000 option shares were granted at a price of $18.10 per option
share. No new options were granted during the years ended June 30, 2002 or 2001.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan as of June 30, 2003, and changes during the
years ending June 30, 2002 and 2001, is presented below:

. Weighted

. Average

. Exercise
Options » Shares . Price
Outstanding at June 30, 2000 312,980 ; $ 9.14
Granted ) -- --
Exercised - 1 --
Forfeited 18,513 . 918
Outstanding at June 30, 2001 294,467 i _9.14
Granted -- --
Exercised ‘ 50,473 P 9.14
Forfeited 25,444 9.13
Outstanding at June 30, 2002 218.550 9.14
Granted 25,000 © 18.10
Exercised 75,163 914
Forfeited -- -
Outstanding at June 30, 2003 168,387 '$ 1047
Options exercisable at June 30, 2003 (vested) 149,637 $ 9,51

Exercise prices for options outstanding at June 30, 2003, range from $9.125 to $18.10 per share. The
weighted average remaining contractual life of such shares was 5.6 years at June 30, 2003, |

The fair value of options granted was estimated on the date of grant using the binomial option-pricing

model with the following weighted average assumptions: |

2003
Grants
Volatility 10.00 % |
Life of options 10.0 years !
Risk-free interest rate 3.53% “

Dividend rate 1.93 % !

The weighted average fair value of options granted durmg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, was $3.03
per share.

Management Recognition Plan - The Management Recognition Plan (“MRP”), approved by the
Company’s stockholders during the year ended June 30, 1998, provides for a committee of the Company’s Board of
Directors to award restricted stock to key officers as well as non-employee directors. The MRP authorizes the
Company to grant up to 52,900 shares of Company stock. Compensation expense is recognized based on the fair
market value of the shares on the grant date over the vesting period. Under the original plan, shares granted to
directors and executive officers vest 25% at the grant date and 25% each May 1 afterward. Shares granted to non-
directors and non executive officers vest 20% at the grant date and 20% each May 1 afterward. Shares granted will
be deemed vested in the event of disability, or death. At June 30, 2003, all shares have been acquired that are
necessary to meet the Plan’s award requirements. The difference between the price at the date of grant and the
actual purchase price is recorded as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity as shares are vested. Approximately
$34,000, $40,000 and $65,000 in compensation expense was recognized during the years ended June 30, 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively. On May 17, 2000, all directors voluntarily elected to extend their vesting period three
additional years to May 1, 2004. In addition, certain officers also voluntarily elected to adopt the three-year
extension of their vesting period. On May 22, 2003, the 8,520 shares, which had been forfeited by former plan
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participants, were granted at $18.10 per share. Of these shares, 8,210 shares were awarded to directors or executive
officers and 310 shares were awarded to non-directors or executive officers.

Officers’ and Directors Retirement Plan - During the year ended June 30, 1996, the Bank adopted a “‘non-
qualified” retirement plan for its officers and directors in recognition of their years of service to the Bank. The plan
is an annuity contract plan whereby funds are to be set aside annually in a grantor trust, with the Bank acting as
trustee of the Trust. Distributions are scheduled to be paid upon completion of six to ten years of service to the
Bank. No tax deduction for the Plan is claimed until funds are paid to the beneficiaries. Future funding is
dependent on continued service to the Bank and therefore is expensed as the plan is funded each year. For the years
ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, contributions to the plan totaled approximately $29,000, $124,000, and
$181,000, respectively.

401(k) Plan - Effective July 1, 1993, employees of the Bank may participate in a 401(k) savings plan,
whereby the employees may elect to make contributions pursuant to a salary reduction agreement upon reaching age
21 and completing one year of service. At its discretion, the Bank may make matching contributions to the plan.
Employer contributions vest 20% each year beginning in the third year of service and become 100% vested in seven
years. The Bank made no matching contribution during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 or 2001.

Employment Agreements - Certain executive officers of the Bank and the Company have employment
agreements with one to three year renewable terms. Such agreements provide for termination pay and other benefits
under certain circumstances. As of June 30, 2003, aggregate termination pay is approximately $0.70 million.

Change-in-Control Agreements — As of June 30, 2003, certain officers of the Bank and the Company had
change-in-control agreements with three-year renewable terms. Such agreements provide for benefits under
circumstances of changes-in-control as defined in the agreements. The benefits provide for a range of 25% to 299%
of the officers’ compensation. As of June 30, 2003, the aggregate benefits total approximately $0.80 million.

12. SALE OF BRANCH

On July 19, 2002, the Bank sold its Monticello branch to Simmons First Bank of South Arkansas. The sale
included approximately $8.3 million in loans, $1.5 million in fixed assets, $0.2 million in other assets, and $13.2
million in deposits. The Bank recognized a premium on the deposits of approximately $0.9 million and the
difference was paid in cash to the buyer. The Bank recognized a net gain on this sale of approximately $743,000.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess
of the amount recognized in the consolidated statements of financial condition. The Company does not use financial
instrumerits with off-balance sheet risk as part of its asset/liability management program or for trading purposes.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it
does for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the credit applicant. Such collateral consists primarily of residential properties. Standby letters of
credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers.
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The Company had the following outstanding commitments at June 30, 2003:

i

Undisbursed construction loans $ 4,783,023
Commitments to originate mortgage loans 989,918 |
Commitments to originate commercial loans 82,000
Unused lines of credit 2,055,580
Total $ _7910,521 .

The funding period for construction loans is generally less than nine months and commitments to originate
mortgage loans are generally outstanding for 60 days or less. At June 30, 2003, interest rates on commitments are
believed by management to approximate market rates. ‘

|
14. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ‘

The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret
market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily
indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated falr value amounts. The
estimated fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

June 30,2003 June 30, 2002
Estimated 1 Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
ASSETS: |
Cash and due from banks $ 3,003,656 $ 3,003,656 $ 3,492,257 § 3,492,257
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 4,203,320 4,203,320 14,404,572 14,404,572
[nvestment securities:

Available for sale 129,960,346 129,960,346 118,198,564 118,198,564
Loans receivable, net 100,779,545 103,394,671 124,176,898 127,424,573
Accrued interest receivable 1,456,372 1,456,372 1,721\‘,612 1,721,612
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 4,704,100 4,704,100 4,709,900 4,709,900

LIABILITIES: ;

Deposits: :

Demand, NOW, money :
market and statement savings 55,486,795 55,486,795 53,015,098 53,015,098

Certificates of deposit 96,469,709 96,867,264 111,990,085 112,396,949
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 69,068,534 77,791,523 82,263,936 86,780,344
Advance payments by

borrowers for taxes and insurance 83,879 83,879 110,446 110,446

Accrued interest payable 563,620 563,620 740?,008 740,008

For cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with banks, Federal Home Loan Bank stock and
accrued interest receivable, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value primarily because of the short-
term nature of instruments or, as to Federal Home Loan Bank stock, the ability to sell the stock back to the Federal
Home Loan Bank at cost. The fair value of investment securities is based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes
and prices obtained from independent pricing services. The fair value of loans receivable is estimated based on
present values using the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities at the reporting date.

The fair value of demand deposit accounts, NOW accounts, savings accounts and money market deposits is
the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit and
Federal Home Loan Bank advances is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings of
similar remaining maturities at the reporting date. For advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance and
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accrued interest payable the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value, primarily because of the short-term
nature of these instruments. Commitments are generally made at prevailing interest rates at the time of funding and
are relatively short term. Therefore, there is no difference between the contract amount and fair value.

The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information available to management as of
June 30, 2003 and 2002. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the
estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial
statements since the reporting date and, therefore, current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the
amounts presented herein.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding commitments and contingent
liabilities that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Company is
a defendant in certain claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, after consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In May, 1999, a shareholder filed a putative class action complaint against the Company and several
current and former officers alleging that the defendants defrauded the plaintiff and other shareholder class members
through various public statements and reports that had the supposed effect of artificially inflating the price the
plaintiff and other putative class members paid to purchase the Company's common stock.

The Company and the other defendants moved to dismiss the complaint. The federal district court granted
the motion on March 31, 2001, but allowed plaintiffs 30 days from the date of the order to file an amended class

action complaint. On August 28, 2001, the Company was informed by the federal district court that the case was
dismissed with prejudice on August 27, 2001.

16. RETAINED EARNINGS

Upon the Conversion, the Company established a special liquidation account for the benefit of eligible
account holders and the supplemental eligible account holders in an amount equal to the net worth of the Bank as of
the date of its latest statement of financial condition contained in the final offering circular used in connection with
the Conversion. The liquidation account will be maintained for the benefit of eligible account holders and
supplemental eligible account holders who continue to maintain their accounts in the Bank after Conversion. In the
event of a complete liquidation (and only in such event), each eligible and supplemental eligible account holder will
be entitled to receive a liquidation distribution from the liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the
current adjusted qualifying balances for accounts then held.

The Bank may not declare or pay cash dividends on its shares of common stock if the effect thereof would
cause the Bank’s stockholders’ equity to be reduced below applicable regulatory capital maintenance requirements
for insured institutions or below the amount of the special liquidation account referred to above. This requirement
effectively limits the dividend paying ability of the Company in that the Company must maintain an investment in
equity of the Bank sufficient to enable the Bank to meet its requirements as noted above. Required capital amounts
are shown in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidation account balances are not maintained because of the cost of maintenance and the remote
likelihood of complete liquidation. Additionally, the Bank is limited to distributions it may make to Bancshares
without OTS approval if the distribution would cause the total distributions to exceed the Bank’s net income for the
year to date plus the Bank’s net income (less distributions) for the preceding two years. Bancshares may use assets
other than its investment in the Bank as a source of dividends.

17. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory—and possible additional
discretionary—actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank
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must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. ‘

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of tangible capital (as defined in the regulations) to
tangible assets (as defined) and core capital (as defined) to adjusted total assets (as defined), and of total risk-based
capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). i

\

As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the most recent notification from the Officel of Thrift Supervision
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum core (Tier I core), Tier I risk-based, and total risk-
based ratios as set forth in the tabie. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management
believes have changed the Bank’s category. 3

The Bank’s actual capital amounts (in thousands) and ratios are also presented in the tables:

| To be Categorized
! as Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital | Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposesj Action Provisions
Amount _Ratio Amount Ratic | Amount Ratio

As of June 30, 2003:

Tier I (Core) Capital to Adjusted Total Assets $ 23,056 9.39 % $9,821 4.00 % $12,276 5.00%
Total Risk-Based Capital to Risk-weighted Assets 24,459  21.83 % 8,962 8.00 % 11,202 10.00 %

Tier I (Core) Capital to Risk-weighted Assets 23,056 2058 % N/A  N/A | 6,721 6.00%
Tangible Capital to Tangible Assets 23,056  939% 3,683 1.50% N/A  NA
As of June 30, 2002: |

Tier I (Core) Capital to Adjusted Total Assets $21,396 7.88% 310,861 4.00 % $13,576 5.00%
Total Risk-Based Capital to Risk-weighted Assets 23,025 17.06 % 10,798 8.00% 13,497 10.00 %
Tier 1 (Core) Capital to Risk-weighted Assets - 21,396  15.85% N/A  N/A ‘ 8,098 6.00%
Tangible Capital to Tangible Assets 21,396 7.88 % 4,073 1.50% N/A N/A

Regulatioﬁs require the Bank to maintain an amount equal to 4% of deposits {net of loans collateralized by
deposits) plus short-term borrowings in cash and U.S. Government and other approved securities.

42




-

18. PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following condensed statements of financial condition as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and condensed
statements of income and cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, for HCB Bancshares, Inc.
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes herein.

HCB BANCSHARES, INC.
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS 2003 2002
Deposit in Bank $ 922508 $ 1,221,185
Cash equivalents 194,659 175,817
Cash and cash equivalents 1,117,167 1,397,002
Investment in Bank 22,992,902 21,927,797
Loans receivable ' 1,027,166 1,060,298
Investment securities 108,570 70,240
Other assets 845,806 821,076
TOTAL ASSETS $ 26091611 § 25276413
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 149,363 § 143,059
Stockholders’ equity ) 25942249 25,133,354
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $26091,611 § 25276413

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

INCOME: ' 2003 2002 2001
Dividend from Bank $ -- $ 9,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Interest and dividend income 116,018 205,248 230,421

Total income 116,018 9,205,248 1,230,421

EXPENSES: _

Operating expenses 122,404 48,944 191,509

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND DISTRIBUTION IN
(EXCESS) LESS THAN BANK SUBSIDIARY INCOME (6,386) 9,156,304 1,038,912

INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) PROVISION (2,4@ 59,849 13,000

INCOME BEFORE DISTRIBUTIONS IN (EXCESS) LESS
THAN BANK SUBSIDIARY INCOME (3,941) 9,096,455 1,025,912

DISTRIBUTIONS IN (EXCESS) THAN BANK
SUBSIDIARY INCOME 1,065,106 (7.930,755) (405,596}

NET INCOME $_1,061,165 $ _1.165700 $ _620316
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HCB BANCSHARES, INC. |
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY) ?

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2003 200? 2001

Net income $ 1,061,165 § 1,1651700 § 620316
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided ’ \

by operating activities: 1

Distributicons (less than) in excess of bank subsidiary income (1,065,106) 7,930{755 405,596

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other assets (11,301) 239i824 (259,752)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 18,494 (194.647) 228,425
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,252 9,141 632 994,585
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ' ‘
Purchase loans, net of repayments 33.132 (360:,298) --
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 33,132 (360,298) -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid (473,937) (472,296)  (474,299)
Purchase of treasury stock, net 157.718 (1,562,533) (1,038,686)
Net cash used by financing activities (316.219)  (8,034,829) (1,512.985)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS : (279,835) 746},505 (518,400)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 1
Beginning of year 1,397,002 650? 497 1,168,897
End of year $_1117,167 § _1 397:.002 $ __650,497

44




19. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amount of income tax expense or benefit allocated to each component of comprehensive income,
including reclassification adjustments, are shown below:

Year Ended June 30, 2003
Before Tax Tax Expense  Net-of-Tax
Amount Amount Amount

UNREALIZED GAINS ON SECURITIES:
Unrealized holding gain on securities
arising during period . $ 1,197,187 $ 417,844 $ 779,343
Less reclassification adjustment for
(gains) losses included in net income --

Other comprehensive income $ 1,197,187 ¥ 417,844 $ 779,343

Year Ended June 30, 2002
Before Tax Tax Expense  Net-of-Tax
Amount Amount Amount

UNREALIZED GAINS ON SECURITIES:
Unrealized holding gain on securities

arising during period $ 2,544,652 $ 1,041,592 $ 1,503,060
Less reclassification adjustment for
(gains) losses included in net income (1.518) - (1,518)
Other comprehensive income $ 2,543,134 $ 1,041,592 $ 1,501,542
Year Ended June 30, 2001
Before Tax Tax Expense  Net-of-Tax
Amount Amount Amount

UNREALIZED GAINS ON SECURITIES:
Unrealized holding gain on securities
arising during period § 7,236,824 § 2,894,756 $ 4,342,068

Less reclassification adjustment for
(gains) losses included in net income -

Other comprehensive income § 7,236,824 $ 2,894,756 $ 4,342,068

45




4 |

CORPORATE INFORMATION :
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